
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The February meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held will be held on Thursday February 16, 2023 at 6:00 pm at West Elmira 
Library. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please inform 
Ms. Dworkin (607-398-2021), Mrs. Melott (733-8607), or Mr. Frank (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2023-5)  
4. Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document #2023-9)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2023-10)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report (Dworkin) 
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the personnel actions as submitted. 

             Consent Item: Approval of Tax Cap Override 
             Whereas, the adoption of the 2024 budget for the Chemung County Library District may require a                     
              tax levy increase that exceeds the tax cap imposed by state law as outlined in General Municipal  
              LawSection3‐c adopted in 2011; and Whereas, General Municipal Law Section 3‐c expressly  
              permits the library board to override the tax levy limit by a resolution approved by a vote of sixty  
              percent of qualified board members; now therefore be it Resolved, that the Board of Trustees of  
              the Chemung County Library District voted and approved to exceed the tax levy limit for 2023   
              by at least the sixty percent of the board of trustees as required by state law on February 16,                
              2023. 
Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Dworkin)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2023-06) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2023-08)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2023-07) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Appenzellar)  
             e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
       1. Continuation of Human Resources Consultant 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


Document #2023-07 
 
 
Report of the February 1, 2023 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30 pm. Present were Ms. Martha Smith, Ms. Rachel Dworkin, Mr. Karl 
Schwesinger, Ms. Lee Saginario, and Ms. Phyllis Rogan.  Also attending were Mr. Owen Frank and 
Ms. Holly Melott, CCLD Management. 
 
The committee received updates on the following: 

• The quote for the cooling tower project at Steele is as follows: $7,800 labor, 
$8,200 parts.  Work will begin in the next few months. 

• RP Fedder has installed new parts to the boiler at Steele.  They are up and 
functioning but additional parts need to be replaced. A quote has been requested. 

• Mr. Frank confirmed, with former project manager, Craig Davis, that the Steele 
boiler warranty has expired. 

• Bookmobile driver, Kim Jones, reported that the dark blue vinyl on the 
Bookmobile is peeling.  Options are being evaluated. 
  

The meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.  

The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, 
March 1, 2023 at 5:30pm in the auditorium of the Steele Memorial Library. 

 
 



Document #2023-06 
 
Report of the February 1, 2023 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee 
were Rachel Dworkin, Phyllis Rogan, and Martha Smith.  Board members attending were Karl 
Schwesinger, Lee Saginario, Bonnie Chollet, Penny Appenzellar, Jessica Roberts and Muriel 
Friend.  Owen Frank and Holly Melott, CCLD management were also present.   
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Melott submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 02/01/2023 in the amount of 
$55,060.92 for the General Fund and $3694.70 for the Central Library District and Central Book 
Aid Fund.  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to approve payment of the 
General Fund in the amount of $55,060.92 and Central Library District and Central Book 
Aid Fund in the amount of $911.11 as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.    
 
Ms. Rachel Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Rogan, to accept a donation in the amount of 
$1,000 from Dr. Wang.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Mr. Schwesinger moved, seconded by Ms. Smith, to accept the proposed quote of $16,864 
and proceed with the work on the Steele cooling tower.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Mr. Frank reported on the following: 

• The Friends organization will be relocating their “bookstore” at Steele to the café area.   
• The Steele Memorial has been designated as a beneficiary of the estate of Ms. Mary 

Tigue.  No further details are known at this time. 
• STLS will be sponsoring a bus trip to Albany on February 28th to advocate for library 

support. 
• Request for proposal of auditor services have been submitted to 5 firms, 2 have 

regretfully declined. 
• STLS will be conducting a continuing education day on Friday, June 9 at the Houghton 

Library, Corning Community College.  Staff attendance is mandatory. 
 
Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet, that all library branches be closed on 
Friday, June 9th to accommodate the continuing education program.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
Ms. Dworkin is collaborating with Brian Hildreth, STLS director, on a board education day.  She 
will email members with proposed dates. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:30 pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, March 1, 2023 at 6 pm in the 
auditorium at the Steele Memorial Library. 



Document #2023-08 
 
Report of the February 8, 2023 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District 
 
Attending the meeting via Zoom: Mr. Jack Schamel, Ms. Jessica Roberts, and Ms. Rachel 
Dworkin. Also in attendance Holly Melott and Owen Frank, CCLD Administration. The meeting 
opened at 8:45 a.m. 
 
Ms. Melott presented the January 31, 2023 Financial Report to the Committee. The report will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Melott presented the Unpaid Bill List dated February 16, 2023 for the General Fund - 
$4,927.42 CBA Fund - $360.56.  Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, March 8, 2023 at 8:45 a.m. via Zoom. 
   
 
 



(Minutes of the January 19, 2023 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board 
of Trustees. Document #2023-5) 
  
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Rachel Dworkin. Present Ms. 
Muriel Friend, Ms. Phyllis Rogan, Mr. Kevin Hansen, Mr. Mark Padgett, Ms. Martha Smith, 
Ms. Pat Silvernail, Ms. Crystal Gullo-Buzzetti, Ms. Jessica Roberts, Mr. Karl Schwesinger, 
Ms. Lee Saginario, Ms. Bonnie Chollet, Ms. Penny Appenzellar, and Mr. Wayne Adams.  
Excused:  Mr. Jack Schamel.  Also present were Ms. Holly Melott and Mr. Owen Frank on 
behalf of the Library District’s Administration, and visitors, Alison Herman, Matt Burr, and 
Mackenzie Mills. 
 
Newly elected and re-elected members were sworn into office.  All members introduced 
themselves. 
 
Ms. Bonnie Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. Penny Appenzellar, that the following 
slate of officers be assigned for 2023:  Ms. Rachel Dworkin – President, Ms. Phyllis 
Rogan – Vice President, Ms. Martha Smith – Secretary, Mr. Jack Schamel – 
Treasurer.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the December 19, 2022 meeting (Document #2022-79) were 
presented for board review. Ms. Gullo-Buzzetti moved that the December Board minutes be 
approved as presented, seconded by Mr. Padgett. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   
 
Financial Report. The December 2022 Financial Report (Document #2022-80) was 
presented for board review.  Mr. Padgett moved, seconded by Ms. Smith, to approve the 
December Financial Report as presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2023-04) Ms. Penny Appenzellar moved, seconded by 
Mr. Hansen, that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 01/19/2023 for 
the General Fund - $31,475.14, CBA Fund- $2,342.80.   VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Correspondence: 

• Teen librarian, Doris Jean Metzger, has learned of two teens that come from 
Binghamton with tutors on a weekly basis to utilize the Teen Space at Steele. 

• The City of Elmira has rescinded their request to place a dog waste receptacle on 
West Elmira Library property. 

 
President’s Report:  Ms. Dworkin would like to schedule board training for all members.  
She will be coordinating with Brian Hildreth of STLS, and reaching out with potential 
meeting dates. 
 
Director’s Report: 

• The boiler repair project at Steele will resume once parts arrive. 
• The deputy town supervisor of Van Etten will create and finalize an agreement of 

services and responsibilities.  Once completed, he will have the VE attorney contact, 
CCLD legal advisor, Kim Middaugh.   

• A letter was received from the Southern Tier Library System Foundation, an 
auxiliary of STLS, they are in need of a Chemung County representative 

• The February board meeting will be held on February 16th at the West Elmira 
Library 

• Friends awarded $18,500 to CCLD 
 
 
 



 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, that the gift of 
$18,500 from the Friends be accepted. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   

 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Rogan moved, seconded by Ms. Silvernail, that the January 
Personnel Actions be approved as presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2023-01)  
Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board. (Document #2023-03)  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2023-02) The Big Flats Library 
Advocates have purchased and replaced the clips and the American flag at the Big Flats 
Library.   
     
Personnel Committee.   The Director search is underway, the deadline to apply is January 
31, 2023.  Several resumes have been received. 
 
Election & Continuity Committee.   STLS will be participating in the annual state library 
advocacy event.  Four of the five board members whose terms expire will be ineligible to 
run for re-election in November of 2023.  Members were encouraged to seek potential 
replacements.  Mr. Kevin Hansen and Ms. Martha Smith volunteered to serve as board 
representatives to the Friends.   
 
Advocacy Committee.   
 
Old Business.    

New Business.  Ms. Chollet shared an encouraging, recent interaction that she had with an 
enthusiastic parent/child patron(s) at the Horseheads branch.   

Public Expression.  Mr. Burr introduced his intern, Mackenzie Mills, and gave a brief 
overview of his interactions and accomplishments with CCLD staff.  Board members were 
encouraged to schedule a time to meet with him.   

Mr. Hansen moved, seconded by Ms. Rogan, to adjourn.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.   

The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, February 16, 2023, at 
6:00pm at the West Elmira Library. 
















	Agenda template
	February 1 2023 B & G Commitee Meeting minutes
	February 1 2023 Executive Committee Meeting
	February 8 2023 B & F committee meeting minutes
	January 19 2023 Minutes
	Feb bd bills detail

